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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's Finance Committee hearing. My

          4  name is David Weprin, I am Chair of the Committee.

          5  We are joined by Council Member Tony Avella from

          6  Queens, and we have Anne Brown, Counsel to the

          7  Committee, and Tanisha Turnbull, Deputy Counsel to

          8  the Committee.

          9                 This morning we'll be joined by other

         10  Council members as the morning goes on. You'll never

         11  believe we're going to start close to on time, so

         12  we'll try to break that pattern.

         13                 This morning we have two items on our

         14  agenda. We will begin first with a local law that

         15  will establish a Business Improvement District in

         16  Queens. Intro. 585 establishes the Sunnyside BID,

         17  located in Council Member Eric Gioia's district.

         18  Resolution 862, adopted by this Committee on May

         19  30th, set today as the first hearing date so we

         20  could hear all who may be affected by the

         21  establishment of the BID who wish to speak.

         22                 After we hear from all witnesses, we

         23  will adjourn the hearing for at least 30 days, which

         24  is the statutorily mandated time during which

         25  property owners objecting to the establishment of
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          2  the BID may file objections.

          3                 In the absence of significant

          4  objections, if the Committee and the Council can

          5  answer the following four questions affirmatively,

          6  it may adopt a local law establishing the BID.

          7                 The four questions we must be

          8  prepared to answer are:

          9                 Were all notices of hearings for all

         10  hearings required to be held published and mailed as

         11  required by law and otherwise sufficient?

         12                 2) Does all the real property within

         13  the District boundaries benefit from the

         14  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

         15  provided by the law?

         16                 3) Is all real property benefitted by

         17  the District included within the district?

         18                 And 4) is the establishment of the

         19  district in the best interests of the public?

         20                 If the Committee finds in the

         21  affirmative on these four questions, and a number of

         22  objections required to prevent the creation of the

         23  BID are not filed, then the legislation can't be

         24  adopted.

         25                 The second item on our agenda is
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          2  Resolution 42, which would extend the partial

          3  property tax exemption provision of the Real

          4  Property Tax Law to the school tax portion of the

          5  New York State Property taxes for qualified

          6  veterans.

          7                 Currently under the real property tax

          8  law, qualified veterans are able to receive a

          9  partial property tax exemption based on service

         10  rendered, including service during war time, service

         11  in a combat zone, and status as a disabled veteran.

         12                 However, this exemption does not

         13  cover school taxes. Resolution 42, which is

         14  sponsored by Council Member Tony Avella, who is

         15  here, would extend the partial exemption to cover

         16  their school tax portion of the Veterans' Tax Bill.

         17                 We've been joined by Council Member

         18  Peter Vallone, Jr. Bear with me for one minute.

         19                 People will be here from the

         20  Sunnyside, that's why we had a little delay,

         21  hearing. So, what we're going to do is we're going

         22  to take testimony on Council Member Avella's

         23  resolution first. And we have a couple of people

         24  signed up for that.

         25                 Okay, before we hear from those that
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          2  are testifying on the Councilman Avella resolution,

          3  I'd like to call upon Councilman Avella for a

          4  statement.

          5                 Councilman Avella.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair.

          8                 First I would like to thank the Chair

          9  of this Committee, Council Member Weprin, for giving

         10  me a moment to think about this resolution, and also

         11  for his co-sponsorship of this resolution.

         12                 This resolution calls upon the New

         13  York State Legislature to amend the New York Real

         14  Property Tax Law in relation to partial property tax

         15  exemptions for qualified veterans.

         16                 Although the current law provides

         17  these important exemptions their value is diminished

         18  by the fact they are applicable only to county,

         19  city, town and village taxation and not to taxes

         20  levied for school purposes.

         21                 In an average property tax bill,

         22  approximately 55 percent of the entire bill

         23  represents the school tax portion. The remaining 45

         24  percent is allocated to general fund taxes paid for

         25  county, city -- city, town and/or village taxes.
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          2                 Men and women in the United States

          3  military have made and will continue to willingly

          4  make incredible personal sacrifices on behalf of

          5  this country in terms of their own personal safety,

          6  the emotional and financial well-being of their

          7  families, and their long-term futures.

          8                 During the continued conflicts in

          9  Iraq and Afghanistan, many active military personnel

         10  are currently serving their fourth or fifth tours of

         11  duty within five years, with some of these

         12  deployments being extended to more than 18 months.

         13                 They face prolonged periods away from

         14  their families and deal with daily anxiety about

         15  their family's ability to cope in their absence on a

         16  financial, as well as personal level.

         17                 Many soldiers serving as reservers,

         18  who were pulled from their families and established

         19  careers, and must worry daily about their family's

         20  financial stability and their own future.

         21                 Extension of the Veteran's Property

         22  Tax Credits to school taxes will not take these

         23  soldiers out of harm's way, or alleviate the

         24  suffering of those who served in prior conflicts,

         25  but it will help to ease their concerns for their
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          2  family's financial futures.

          3                 I hope to hear, you know, obviously

          4  positive testimony today, and it would be my

          5  intention, Mr. Chair, to under the rules, to call

          6  for a vote within 30 days on this resolution.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Bradford Reese,

          9  followed by Joseph Graffagnino. Forgive me if I'm

         10  mispronouncing the name. Followed by Peter Bronson.

         11                 We've been joined by Council Member

         12  Helen Sears from Queens, and our Majority Leader

         13  Council Member Joel Rivera from the Bronx.

         14                 Sir, if you could state your name,

         15  title for the record, who you're representing.

         16                 MR. BRONSON: Peter Bronson, Coalition

         17  of Veterans in Pain and Distress. I'm the

         18  Legislative Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         20                 MR. BRONSON: I want to thank you,

         21  Councilman Weprin, and Councilman Avella for

         22  proposing this legislation.

         23                 We feel, especially since the

         24  establishment of an all volunteer army, and military

         25  services that we're bearing a brunt that's far
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          2  beyond what we should bear.

          3                 We have, in spite of denials by the

          4  City, we have more than 10,000 homeless veterans

          5  living on the streets of New York, from previous

          6  wars that haven't been dealt with properly.

          7                 We feel that the extension of this

          8  tax break to veterans who are now coming back in

          9  large numbers from OEF and OIF, where the injuries

         10  are much more severe, and they have had much more

         11  difficulty than veterans from earlier wars, who find

         12  employment and find housing and get resettled.

         13                 While all this is going on, the

         14  Department of Defense maintains a program called

         15  TAP, Transitional Adjustment Program. That program

         16  is supposed to do what Boot Camp or Basic Training

         17  does for a military personnel member when they

         18  enlist. This program is supposed to get them ready

         19  to turn to civilian life.

         20                 There are very few jobs for snypers

         21  in New York. In fact, I think you're trying to get

         22  rid of guns. So, it would seem that this little tax

         23  break might ease the burden to these many veterans

         24  that are going to be coming back in the future

         25  besides the ones that are already here.
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          2                 Thank you for your time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, sir.

          4                 And if you could just state your name

          5  and title for the record.

          6                 MR. REESE: I am Bradford Reese. I

          7  represent two posts this morning: George P. Davis

          8  American Legion Post Number 116, and also the

          9  Veterans of the Vietnam War, Henry J. Green Post

         10  Number 1. Both out of Brooklyn New York.

         11                 Unfortunately, the announcement of

         12  this meeting and this resolution at its core and

         13  focus only came to my attention Saturday. Please

         14  pardon my lack of preparation.

         15                 I'm very distressed to see that there

         16  are no other veteran members of organizations that I

         17  recognize in the room also. I will bring this to

         18  their attention as soon as possible, because it is

         19  emphatically important.

         20                 The Veterans' Partial Tax Resolution

         21  will not erode the tax base or drain the coffers of

         22  New York State; however, in fact, it is a

         23  reinvestment in New York State. There is an unseen

         24  and overlooked and uncounted natural resource, that

         25  natural resource is simply people themselves. They
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          2  are creative, they are industrious, and especially,

          3  with my concern, they come in the form of veterans.

          4                 The gentleman before me, he has

          5  mentioned horrific injuries that they've suffered,

          6  and their multiple disabilities. I found out that

          7  over the last few years the federal government has

          8  taken, they're not only trimming the fat out of

          9  veterans benefits, but they've taken a meat axe to

         10  it, and they are now working on the muscle of

         11  veterans' benefits.

         12                 This bill, as I see it, is something

         13  that is a step in a very positive direction, and I

         14  thank the Council members for hearing me this

         15  morning, and Councilman Avella for promoting this

         16  bill, and I shall do everything in my limited power

         17  to help you in this matter.

         18                 Thank you very much for your time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Incidentally, if

         20  you want to contact some of the other veterans'

         21  groups, I would be very happy to take testimony in

         22  writing or statements in writing that we can

         23  incorporate into the record. So, there is still

         24  time, if they want to communicate to my attention as

         25  Chair of the Committee, I will make sure that any

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  statements that are presented to us, you know, as

          3  soon as possible are incorporated into the overall

          4  hearing record on the bill.

          5                 MR. REESE: Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I believe Council

          7  Member Sears had a question, or a statement?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: It's just a

          9  comment. Thank you for testifying today, because

         10  it's a very important issue.

         11                 In terms of other groups not being

         12  here to testify, believe me, though, the groups that

         13  are in Queens are very much aware of this. I

         14  attended, along with other Council members, a

         15  dedication for what is to be a park in Queens. There

         16  was very strong mention to the veterans returning

         17  home and the resources that are necessary for them.

         18  So, this is a very important issue, because there is

         19  a big gap. There is no question about it. And I know

         20  that we're going to do everything we can to see that

         21  that gap gets smaller. I just wanted you to know

         22  that.

         23                 MR. REESE: Thank you very much.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, Joseph

          3  Graffagnino.

          4                 MR. GRAFFAGNINO: Thank you very much.

          5  I'm not representing any group. I'm a Vietnam

          6  veteran and I am from Brooklyn, New York.

          7                 I want to thank the Council for

          8  allowing me to sit here today. I want to thank

          9  Councilman Avella for presenting this.

         10                 I'm going to read from a prepared

         11  text, if that's okay, addressed to the City Council.

         12                 I'm asking for your support for

         13  Council Member Tony Avella's Veterans Property Tax

         14  Resolution 42/2006, which calls upon the State

         15  Legislature to change the Property Tax Exemption Law

         16  to extend the Veterans Tax Exemption to apply to

         17  school taxes, as well as the general fund taxes.

         18                 Brooklyn Borough President Marty

         19  Markowitz and State Senator Marty Golden are

         20  supporters of this change, as well as many other

         21  Council members and elected officials.

         22                 The cost of living in New York City

         23  is prohibitively expensive for everyone. Real estate

         24  property taxes increased by 40 percent in the last

         25  few years. While there are several property tax
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          2  exemptions, clergy, co-op condo abatement, disabled,

          3  crime victim and good samaritan, disabled home

          4  owners, senior citizen home owners, STAR, basic and

          5  enhanced and veterans, only the veterans' tax

          6  exemption is subject to a school tax.

          7                 Why are our veterans being singled

          8  out and penalized by New York City and State?

          9                 I am writing to ask for your support

         10  to extend the veterans' tax exemption to apply to

         11  the school tax also.

         12                 Veterans are not just our

         13  grandparents and parents anymore. They are our

         14  brothers and sisters, cousins, uncles and aunts, as

         15  well.

         16                 I remember a few years ago, a photo

         17  in a local paper that had Council Speaker Quinn with

         18  her dad on Veterans Day celebrating the fact and

         19  sharing the honor of being together on Veterans Day,

         20  while also sharing the knowledge of what it meant to

         21  not only be a veteran, but also be able to survive

         22  and be recognized by your City and State for your

         23  unselfish act of giving of yourself for the

         24  betterment of your family, friends, city, state and

         25  country. Why not give something back to them, who
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          2  have given so much to you?

          3                 This tax is morally wrong because it

          4  singles out veterans as a target group. If the New

          5  York City Council is supportive of this Legislature,

          6  then it will stand a much greater chance of success

          7  to have the State enact the appropriate changes.

          8                 Respectfully yours, Joseph

          9  Graffagnino.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. Do you

         12  have the written testimony? Would you like us to

         13  incorporate that into the record?

         14                 MR. GRAFFAGNINO: Yes, please.

         15                 I also have a letter of support from

         16  State Senator Marty Goldman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. You have

         18  copies for us? For the Committee?

         19                 MR. GRAFFAGNINO: I'll have copies

         20  made.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         22                 Would anyone else like to testify on

         23  the resolution?

         24                 Step forward.

         25                 MR. GRAFFAGNINO: Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: All right, we've

          3  been joined by Council Member Diana Reyna from

          4  Brooklyn and Queens. Welcome.

          5                 MR. Good morning, Mr. Chairman,

          6  Committee members. I didn't intend to speak. I

          7  didn't sign up to speak. I just wanted to let

          8  Councilman Avella know that the New York County

          9  American Legion Organization is here today. My name

         10  is Bob Corrigan, and I'm a Vice Commander with New

         11  York County, and I'm here today with our commander,

         12  Mr. Bob Chin. I just wanted you to know, Council

         13  Member, that you have our support 100 percent, and

         14  we'll do whatever we can to help you in your

         15  efforts, and we appreciate your efforts.

         16                 Just a couple of statistics, if I

         17  may? New York State, we have about 1.1 million

         18  veterans from all wars, and that ranks about fourth

         19  in the nation, in terms of total veterans. Not all

         20  veterans own property, some like myself, we rent

         21  apartments and whatnot, but there are many veterans

         22  out there that would appreciate this additional tax

         23  incentive, if you will.

         24                 I mean, we appreciate having the

         25  partial property tax exemption, as it is now, but an
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          2  additional exemption on school taxes would go a long

          3  way to help veterans meet additional expenses, such

          4  as insurance, maintenance expenses and various other

          5  types of expenses. So, from a practical standpoint,

          6  this legislation is very worthwhile and important to

          7  veterans. I just wanted to make sure, Mr. Avella,

          8  that you know that we support you, New York County

          9  does, and I'm sure every other county, and we hope

         10  that this legislation is passed here at the City

         11  Council level and forwarded on to Albany, where it

         12  will also be approved.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. If you

         14  could fill out a form so we have your name and

         15  address and title, for the record. If you could fill

         16  out the form and hand it up?

         17                 MR. CORRIGAN: Yes, sir. Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes. We've been

         20  joined by Council Member Bill DeBlasio from

         21  Brooklyn.

         22                 I believe Council Member Sears had a

         23  question.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Just a comment.

         25  I just want to say, for the members that are in the
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          2  room who are sponsors of this bill, like myself and

          3  Councilman Weprin, that you can be sure that we'll

          4  have every effort to move this along, because I

          5  can't imagine that there are others that will not

          6  sponsor this as well. So, I wanted you to know that.

          7  All right, thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Anybody else from

          9  the audience like to testify on this resolution?

         10                 Okay, can Nadine Felton come up from

         11  the Finance staff.

         12                 Nadine, you want to come up? I'm just

         13  going to ask if they've done -- I'll ask her.

         14                 MS. FELTON: Nadine Felton, Assistant

         15  Director of the Finance Division.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, has the

         17  Finance staff done any analysis what the cost could

         18  potentially be to the City, if this legislation was

         19  adopted in Albany?s.

         20                 MS. FELTON: Yes. What they call the

         21  "veterans levy," the veterans levy in the property

         22  tax for the education levy, raises about 28 million,

         23  I think, 29 million, in Fiscal Year 2008.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So, if Albany was

         25  to adopt this, it would only be a cost to the City
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          2  of New York of $29 million?

          3                 MS. FELTON: Yes. Around, yes. That's

          4  pretty much the range of the veterans' levy,

          5  correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Doesn't

          7  seem like a large amount in a $59 billion budget.

          8                 I believe Councilman Avella had a

          9  statement?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you.

         11                 For the record, we've also received a

         12  number of letters in support of the legislation.

         13  I'll just read the name of the organization, and

         14  I'll submit these letters of testimony.

         15                 From the George Washington American

         16  Legion Post, Charles Emma (phonetic), Commander in

         17  Brooklyn. Brooklyn Community Board 13 is in support

         18  of the legislation. The American Legion, New York

         19  County we have heard from. American Legion, Edward

         20  McKee Post 131 in Whitestone in support. The 111

         21  Infantry Division Association, World War II, based

         22  in Bayside in support. The Jewish War Veterans in

         23  the United States, Lipsky Blumm Post 764, which is

         24  based in Flushing is in support. The Olinville

         25  Taxpayers and Civic Association in the Bronx is in
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          2  support, and the Watkins Kelly Post 277 of the

          3  American Legion on Staten Island is in support.

          4                 Mr. Chair, I will submit these

          5  letters to you for the record, and just a couple of

          6  quick comments. For those veterans and

          7  representative veterans organizations that are here,

          8  I wish I could be a little more optimistic in

          9  support of this legislation, and my comments do not

         10  refer to anybody on this Committee or the Chair, who

         11  has been extremely supportive in moving this ahead.

         12  But this hearing today is because I used a

         13  little-known rule of the City Council called

         14  "sponsors privilege" to call this hearing up. If I

         15  hadn't done that, my request to the leadership of

         16  this Council had fallen on deaf ears, we wouldn't

         17  even have had this hearing. This resolution has been

         18  pending for how long? For years. In my opinion, it

         19  is a disgrace that we weren't able to have this

         20  hearing before. And, again, my comments do not

         21  reflect the members of this Committee, or the Chair

         22  who has been extremely supportive of this

         23  resolution.

         24                 This is just one small step we can

         25  take for veterans. It is an absolute disgrace how
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          2  little we do for those people who defend our freedom

          3  day-in day-out, and some who didn't come back at

          4  all, some who came back disabled.

          5                 Under this specific rule, I have the

          6  ability to call up for a vote, and as you may have

          7  heard me before mention to the Chair, that I will

          8  exercise that option.

          9                 This is something we need to do, and

         10  we need to ask the State Legislature once we've

         11  passed this to enact this legislation.

         12                 As Chair Weprin said, 28, 29 million

         13  dollars out of a $59 billion budget is really

         14  insignificant for the benefit that it will give to

         15  those people who have given so much for us in this

         16  country.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         19  Councilman.

         20                 Okay, we'll now hear the Sunnyside

         21  BID portion of the hearing.

         22                 First we'll hear from Deputy

         23  Commissioner George Glatter, from the Department of

         24  Small Business Services.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Good
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          2  morning, Mr. Chairman, and members of the Finance

          3  Committee. I'm George Glatter, Assistant

          4  Commissioner of the Department of Small Business

          5  Services, SBS.

          6                 SBS supports the establishment of the

          7  Sunnyside Business Improvement District in the

          8  Borough of Queens. Geographically, the proposed

          9  Sunnyside BID includes properties fronting Queens

         10  Boulevard from 38th Street to 50th Street;

         11  Greenpoint Avenue from 42nd Street to 48th Street;

         12  and Roosevelt Avenue from 48th Street to 50th

         13  Street.

         14                 Services to be provided in the

         15  Sunnyside BID District include street and sidewalk

         16  sweeping, maintenance, graffiti removal, security

         17  services, marketing and commotion at the local area,

         18  holiday decorations, administration, and other

         19  services as may be required for the promotion and

         20  enhancement of the district.

         21                 The Sunnyside District Management

         22  Association will manage the district. The budget for

         23  the first year of operation is $300,000.

         24                 As required by law, the Sunnyside BID

         25  Steering Committee mailed the summary of the City
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          2  Council resolution to each owner of real property

          3  within the proposed district at the address shown on

          4  the latest City assessment role. Or to such other

          5  persons as are registered with the City to receive

          6  tax bills concerning real property within the

          7  district, and to tenants of each building within the

          8  proposed district.

          9                 In addition, SBS arranged for the

         10  publication of a copy of the summary of the

         11  resolution, at least once in the City Record. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Glatter.

         15                 Any questions for Mr. Glatter?

         16                 Council Member Sears.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Actually, it's

         18  more of a comment because to have established the

         19  beginnings of BID and take it through the process,

         20  as you all know, I'm a big supporter of BIDs, but

         21  this is an example, really and truly, of how the

         22  community so worked to pull this all together. And

         23  to take it step by step, I've never seen anything

         24  quite as organized as this one, and I formed one of

         25  the BIDs in my district. That was some time ago, and
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          2  we got through a lot of glitches and things, but

          3  this has absolutely taken everything under

          4  consideration. So, I want to congratulate you for

          5  helping them to get it through the process and for

          6  those who worked on it, because I see Lily Gavin is

          7  here, and she certainly did a lot and she's a

          8  businesswoman, and has a great deal to do with her

          9  restaurant, and I really think that this is

         10  wonderful.

         11                 And what is the next step after this?

         12  Because I really need to be refreshed a little bit?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, we're

         14  setting it down -- what's the date we have set down,

         15  Mr. Glatter?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: We

         17  will probably do it in August. I'm not sure what the

         18  date is.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, we need a

         20  30-day comment period.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Then

         23  you'll vote.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Then we'll

         25  vote. About August 30th?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: No,

          3  whenever your date is in August.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: The Stated

          5  Meeting in August.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The Stated in

          7  August. We'll be able to vote on that August 11th?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Oh, terrific.

         10  That's what I wanted to know. Thank you.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: We

         12  provided whatever technical assistance we could but

         13  really all the kudos goes to the Steering Committee.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But, you know,

         15  you serve as that mechanism to get them in and out

         16  of this bureaucratic maze that we have to deal with,

         17  so that help is very vital to them.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Thank

         19  you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Otherwise it's

         21  impossible for any laypeople to get through it,

         22  unless we simplify this process.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: We

         24  try.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I'm going

          4  to call up a number of names, and if you could come

          5  up in the order that I call you.

          6                 Miguel Flores. Followed by Rosa

          7  Reyas, followed by Lily Gavin, followed by Gerald

          8  Letterman, followed by John Vogt, followed by

          9  Theresa Facciuto.

         10                 Just for the record, you're all here

         11  to testify in favor of?

         12                 MR. VOGT: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay.

         14                 MR. VOGT: Do we have to go in order

         15  or?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: You can choose

         17  among yourselves.

         18                 MR. VOGT: I'll start. Good morning,

         19  everybody. Chairman Weprin, I'm John Vogt, President

         20  of the Sunnyside Chamber of Commerce.

         21                 I'm with Dr. Gerry Lederman, Miguel

         22  Flores, Lily Gavin, Theresa Facciuto, some of the

         23  members of the Steering Committee that helped put

         24  this together. We worked on this long and hard for a

         25  couple of years, and it just - we're here finally.
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          2  It's an achievement just getting here.

          3                 Just real quick with the BID, I know

          4  George Glatter talked about it, the boundaries again

          5  are 38th Street to 50th Street on Queens Boulevard,

          6  42nd Street to 48th Street on Greenpoint, and then

          7  48th to 50th on Roosevelt. Greenpoint turns into

          8  Roosevelt with a criss-cross at Queens Boulevard.

          9                 The little section on Roosevelt is a

         10  gas station. Of course with all that criss-crossing,

         11  we have a lot of triangle blocks, so we tried to

         12  include what we could.

         13                 I know you have the numbers, but if

         14  you just give me a moment, we have 92 tax lots in

         15  the area, 80 individual property owners, one of them

         16  is here today, Chris Winchester, representing Picman

         17  Realty, which is the largest single landlord in the

         18  targeted BID area. We have approximately 290

         19  businesses, and about 210 resident units. Again, our

         20  modest budget of 300,000. Most of that is going to

         21  be for sanitation. We have 50,000 for security, give

         22  or take a few, 25,000 for holiday lights, 35,000 for

         23  marketing, and then the other, graffiti removal,

         24  maintenance and administration. So, it's a process.

         25                 I also, in another life, I am
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          2  Regional Director of Restaurant Operations for White

          3  Castle, and we are currently in four BIDs. I have

          4  units operating. We are working with Judy Limpert in

          5  Bayside, we'll be in that BID when it's finished. We

          6  started working with people up in the Belmont

          7  section of the Bronx. We'll have a White Castle in

          8  that BID. So, we're all around the City and White

          9  Castle is in favor of the BIDs. We know what it does

         10  for the area, how it helps stabilize as a business

         11  area. You know, the new malls coming in, all of your

         12  boutiques and everything go to the malls, so you

         13  need a different entity to make sure we still have a

         14  viable business strip in all our communities.

         15                 Anything else? Maybe I could answer

         16  questions for you?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: No, I mean you

         18  covered it. I believe Council Member Sears had a

         19  question.

         20                 MR. VOGT: Sure. Helen.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you. And

         22  I'm sorry I didn't see all of you sitting on that

         23  side, so I personally want to thank you for all

         24  you've done.

         25                 Just one question. What I observed,
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          2  and that's not for now, but maybe as you travel on

          3  this journey of the BID, that areas that are quite

          4  congested, the BID is there, and certainly yours

          5  generates a lot of business. Then I find on the

          6  weekend, particularly during holiday time, it helps

          7  if the BID office is open, either manned by a

          8  graduate student or somebody, so that the merchants

          9  have a presence that the BID is there, because the

         10  merchants just can't do that. That's been my

         11  observation. I mentioned this with business

         12  services. So, I don't know if that's something

         13  you're thinking about in your next budget or what is

         14  proposed now. I can tell you from the experience,

         15  it's very important because that person will see

         16  what needs to be corrected, and then will leave a

         17  memo to your director as to what they observed on

         18  the weekend. For instance, lights out at night, you

         19  know? It's very hard for the Director to know that.

         20                 MR. VOGT: One of the things we put in

         21  our job description, we haven't posted for Executive

         22  Director yet because we don't want to get ahead of

         23  where we are.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Right.

         25                 MR. VOGT: Would be, they have to be
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          2  flexible in their hours.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

          4                 MR. VOGT: And obviously, if we're in

          5  the future able to increase our budget then we can

          6  hire additional staff to cover weekends, nights very

          7  important.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes. Because it

          9  does help the merchants. It gives them a lot of

         10  support because they can't call any authoritative

         11  agency like the local police precinct for things

         12  that they find are not quite right. That's why I

         13  bring that up. Okay.

         14                 MR. VOGT: Very good point.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you. And

         16  congratulations.

         17                 MR. VOGT: Thank you.

         18                 MR. LEDERMAN: My name is Gerald

         19  Lederman. I'm the Chairman of the Board of the

         20  Sunnyside Chamber of Commerce, and a residential

         21  property owner in the proposed BID.

         22                 I have had an affiliation with the

         23  community for over 70 years, and --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: You don't look

         25  that old.
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          2                 MR. LEDERMAN: In addition to which I

          3  am a member of another BID in the City of New York,

          4  the Madison Avenue BID. And I, as an individual,

          5  have seen what a BID can do for a business district.

          6  Our business district, while viable needs help. And

          7  it's my feeling that the BID will give a tremendous

          8  amount of help to the smaller businesses in our

          9  community, to the land owners and in the final

         10  analysis, enhance the values of their properties,

         11  which they're all concerned about.

         12                 I tend to agree with Councilwoman

         13  Sears, that we should provide services on the

         14  weekends as well, because very often the weekends

         15  are times when our local businesses are very busy.

         16  And there are people looking for help and

         17  occasionally there are problems which a BID security

         18  service, for example, can respond to, and that sort

         19  of thing, so I'm also in agreement with her with

         20  respect to that.

         21                 We have had in the community, thanks

         22  to Councilman Gioia, who I don't see him here --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I believe

         24  Councilman Gioia is on his way, but for the record,

         25  I've spoken to Council Member Gioia extensively
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          2  about this BID and he's a very strong supporter of

          3  the establishment of the BID and will be supportive

          4  throughout the process.

          5                 MR. LEDERMAN: Yes. Well, he was kind

          6  enough to provide a small amount of funding for us

          7  to have what we call "a taste of the BID," where we

          8  had people supplementing the Sanitation services

          9  that the City provides to the BID and our merchants

         10  were extremely impressed by it and are very, very

         11  favorably disposed to forming the BID in part as a

         12  result of that session that Councilman Gioia

         13  provided to us.

         14                 Additionally, the community has

         15  traditionally in the past accepted voluntary

         16  contributions from some of the merchants for

         17  promotion of the businesses, such as holiday

         18  lighting and things of that sort. We feel that with

         19  the BID now, as a result of diminution in those

         20  voluntary contributions lately, our ability to do

         21  that has been diminished greatly. With the

         22  establishment of the BID, we'll be able to

         23  revitalize those holiday activities which promote

         24  the businesses in the community.

         25                 I personally, as I say, as a property
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          2  owner, as a manager within, a property manager

          3  within the community, am extremely in favor of the

          4  BID.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          6                 MS. GAVIN: Good morning, Mr.

          7  Chairman, and to the Council members. We're very

          8  excited to be here today because it's taken us a

          9  long time, and a lot of hard work from the whole

         10  steering committee, and also the support of the

         11  small business that has made this happen. So, we

         12  here today are very excited.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, Ms. Gavin,

         14  could you just identify yourself for the record.

         15                 MS. GAVIN: Oh, yes. Lily Gavin.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I know who you

         17  are, but not everybody else does.

         18                 MS. GAVIN: Daisy's Restaurant and

         19  also property owner on Queens Boulevard, L&K Realty.

         20  And also I'm the Vice President of the Sunnyside

         21  Chamber, and on the BID Steering Committee. And I'd

         22  like to say that we work very hard, and being very

         23  involved with the community for over 35 years, we've

         24  seen that it has gone down. We've kept it at a

         25  level. Now with the BID in place, we feel like they
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          2  will have a chance to go up and compete and also be

          3  part of the other BIDs in our community, as we have

          4  Long Island City, Astoria, and Jackson Heights, and

          5  to make a difference for all the small businesses,

          6  and also for the residents in the community, that's

          7  what we're going to give. And so that's why I'm in

          8  so much support and have worked very hard for it.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Ms.

         11  Gavin.

         12                 MR. FLORES: Thank you, Chairperson.

         13  My name is Miguel Flores. I'm part of the Sunnyside

         14  Chamber of Commerce. Also I'm a business person in

         15  the area. What we're looking for is to get this

         16  business district for the community and business,

         17  because we feel if we do something, the community is

         18  going to benefit, the residents and the business

         19  people. And I believe the business district is going

         20  to change different lives and growth in the

         21  community. Thank you.

         22                 MS. REYES: Good morning. My name is

         23  Rosa Reyes and I've been working with the Sunnyside

         24  Chamber closely to get through this BID process.

         25  While I don't live in the Sunnyside area, I do work
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          2  in Sunnyside and shop in Sunnyside and I realize

          3  that Business Improvement District will help improve

          4  the shopping district. It would improve the

          5  community for residents, shoppers and businesses in

          6  the area. So, I'm in support of the BID and just

          7  wanted to make that clear.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. And

          9  last but not least.

         10                 MS. FACCIUTO: My name is Theresa

         11  Facciuto, and I'm here representing White Castle.

         12                 We have been in the Sunnyside

         13  Community since 1939 and we've been on our present

         14  location 43rd Street and Queens Boulevard, since

         15  1946. We have seen what Sunnyside was. We have seen

         16  its magnificent history. We have seen a community

         17  that's divided by Queens Boulevard and yet remains a

         18  community, a solid, vibrant community, but this

         19  community is in need of an investment into its

         20  future. And we believe the establishment of the BID,

         21  the Business Improvement District, in Sunnyside is

         22  in fact that, an investment of the future of the

         23  Sunnyside community, allowing it to take its

         24  rightful place, in this magnificent Borough that we

         25  know as Queens.

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 We would appreciate your looking into

          3  this and improving it, because it is our future.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. I'd

          6  just also like to state for the record, I'm a proud

          7  sponsor of this proposed BID. I'm a strong advocate

          8  for BIDs throughout the City. One of the things I'd

          9  like to state is, and I want to thank both Mayor

         10  Bloomberg and Commissioner Robert Walsh for their

         11  strong support of the establishments of new BIDs

         12  throughout the City, and in my opinion, in tough

         13  fiscal times in particular, but even when we have

         14  huge surpluses, Business Improvement Districts do

         15  not substitute for regular services. Every area,

         16  every business area gets the regular services

         17  everyone gets. These are extra services that are

         18  provided to a business district at the request of

         19  the local businesses, and part of our process is to

         20  get comments from all of the proposed businesses in

         21  the area, and that's why we're awaiting the 30-day

         22  period for comments. But if this BID, if the other

         23  BIDs that have come before my Committee are any

         24  example, I expect very strong support among all the

         25  businesses and with very few exceptions, and you
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          2  know, I really want to thank Commissioner Walsh and

          3  Mayor Bloomberg for their leadership in improving

          4  and expanding a Business Improvement District.

          5  Because that was not always the case in the City

          6  Administration. Past Mayors, without mentioning any

          7  names, were not as supportive of the creation of new

          8  BIDs and the expansion of new BIDs throughout our

          9  City. And I really think it's a win/win because it's

         10  a small price for businesses to pay for the

         11  additional services, and it also creates kind of an

         12  association of bringing the businesses together on a

         13  united purpose, and as issues come up, it's very

         14  easy for the Chamber and the local Chambers to work

         15  together as a BID. It kind of gives you credibility

         16  Citywide. It gives you more credibility locally, and

         17  I think it's a win/win for the community. So, you

         18  have my strong support in the establishment of this

         19  BID.

         20                 MR. VOGT: Thank you.

         21                 MS. GAVIN: Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: In the absence of

         23  Councilman Gioia, I'm going to ask his Chief of

         24  Staff to come up and just make a statement on his

         25  position on the BID.
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          2                 Oh, we've been joined by Council

          3  Member Robert Jackson. And also, I'd just like to

          4  read into the record a letter from Comptroller

          5  William Thompson, in support of this BID. It's

          6  addressed to me.

          7                 "Dear Councilman Weprin:

          8                 The Comptroller of the City of New

          9  York serves as an ex-officio member of the Board of

         10  Directors at all Business Improvement Districts.

         11  During my term as Comptroller, I have found these

         12  public/private partnerships to be effective in

         13  developing new and innovative programs to support

         14  local business.

         15                 BIDs have a proven track record of

         16  success in a broad range of communities across our

         17  City. Efforts to incubate additional Business

         18  Improvement Districts deserve support of all New

         19  Yorkers interested in improving the business climate

         20  along our neighborhood commercial streets that is

         21  such a crucial part of community life.

         22                 I'm especially pleased to support the

         23  creation of this new BID in Sunnyside, Queens. The

         24  BID will include both sides of Queens Boulevard from

         25  38th to 48th Street, both sides of Greenpoint Avenue
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          2  between 43rd Street and 48th Street, and Roosevelt

          3  Avenue between 48th and 50th Street.

          4                 Sunnyside is a dynamic and growing

          5  community that will benefit greatly from the

          6  establishment of this new BID. I urge the Council to

          7  pass Intro. 585.

          8                 Very truly yours, Williams C.

          9  Thompson, Jr., Comptroller of the City of New York."

         10                 MS. EPSTEIN: I'm Zoe Epstein. I'm

         11  Chief of Staff to Councilman Eric Gioia, who

         12  represents the area in question.

         13                 I just wanted to say that Councilman

         14  Gioia is extraordinarily in favor of this BID, and

         15  I'd like to thank everyone on the Steering Committee

         16  and the members of the Chamber of Commerce for their

         17  hard work in getting to this point. As Councilwoman

         18  Sears alluded to, it's been a number of years

         19  coming, but I think it's really important that we

         20  show that the entire community is really behind

         21  that, and they've worked extraordinarily hard to

         22  demonstrate that, and that's why we're here today.

         23  So, thank you for that, once again.

         24                 Sunnyside is obviously a very special

         25  community for Eric. Our office is actually located
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          2  within boundaries of the BID, so we're excited as

          3  well. And we've already begun to put together the

          4  public/private partnerships that the BID is really

          5  -- BIDs are really about. We're looking greatly

          6  forward to the rehabilitation of the Sunnyside Arch

          7  on 46th Street and Queens Boulevard, and to

          8  partnering with the BID to maintain the arch which

          9  is really a symbol of our neighborhood and of our

         10  community, and ensuring that it always is within the

         11  state of splendor it ought to be and has not been in

         12  the past.

         13                 So, once again, thank you, Chair

         14  Weprin and other members of the Finance Committee,

         15  for your support, and we're looking forward to

         16  passing this Intro and establishing officially the

         17  Sunnyside BID.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Ms.

         19  Epstein. And I know Councilman Gioia was a guest

         20  speaker at a graduation this morning, so he probably

         21  got delayed, but he did express to me his strong

         22  support as well for the BID and for all the business

         23  owners in the district.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 Would anybody else like to testify
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          2  pro or con?

          3                 Hearing none, this session of the

          4  Finance Committee is now adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 11:00 a.m.)
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